
Thomas E. Dwyer, Jr., Esq. 
Dwyer & Collora, LLP 
600 Atlantic Avenue 
Boston, MA 02210-2211 

U.S. Department of Justice 

Unite4 Stala A.ttorney 
Distria of MassllClu.lSetts 

J 003 J. W. McC()f'fffQck P03t Offir;1! and COllrthOUst 

"Bo3lDn. MlU.JOclIJUwlU 01}09 
T.lllp~ (617) 22J-9400 Fax (617) ]]3-4817 

August 18, 1998 

re: United states y. Sa~Qglt Inc. 
United States v, Sa~bolt North America Inc. 

Dear Mr. Dwyer: 

This letter sets forth the agreement entered into between 
the United states Attorney for the District of Massachusetts, the 
United States Attorney for the District of New Jersey, the United 
states Attorney for the District of connecticut, and the Fraud 
Section, Criminal Division, united States Department of Justice 
(collectively, "the U.S. Attorneystl) a~ your clients, Saybolt 
Inc. ("Saybolt") and Saybolt North America Inc. (together, the 
Ill)cfcndClnts") I in the above-captioned matters. The agreement is 
ClS tollows: 

1. Change of Plea 

On or before September 18 , 1998, or at such date as the 
Court may determine, Defendants shall woive Indictment and plead 
guilty to two Informations to be filed .in the District of 
MClssuchusetts in substantially the form attached, cha~ging them 
with the following offenses: 

a. Information A; Data FalsificAtiQn (Saybolt IOQ,) 

Conspiracy to commit offenses against the United states, in 
violation of Title 18, United states Code, section 371 (one 
count)i and 

fraud by wire, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, 
section 1343 (one count). 

b. Information B: foreign corrygt Practices Act (SaybQlt 
HQrth America I~c. and Saybott Inc.) 

Conspiracy to commit offenses aga~nst the united States, in 
violation of Title 18, United States Code, section 371 (one 
count); and 



Using an instrumentality of interstate commerce in 
fUrtherance of a payment to a tore1qn government official ~n 
violation of the Foreign Corrupt p~actices Act, Title 15, 
United states Code, section 78dd-2'(a) (3) (one count). 

2. Penalties 

Defendants understand and agree th~t the statutory maximum 
penalties for the counts to which they are pleading guilty are as 
follows: 

a. Info~atiQn A: Data FAlsification (SaYbolt Inc.) 

Conspiracy (18 U.S.C. 5371): 

$1,970,000 fine (two times Defendant's gross gain from 
the offenses, pursuant to 18 u.S.C.S3571{d) i 
five years probationi 
restitution; and 
$400 special assessment. 

Wire Fraud (18 U.S.C. S1343): 

$1,970,000 fine (two times Detendant's gross gain from 
the offenses, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.S3571(d»); 
five years probation; 
restitutionj and 
$400 special assessment. 

b. Information B; foreign Corru~j.: practices Act._. (Saybolt 
NQrth America Inc. and SaybQ~ Inc.) 

conspiracy (18 U.S.C. 5371): 

$500,000 fine or two times D&~endants' gross gain from 
the offenses; 
fiVe years probation; 
restitution; and 
$400 special assessment. 

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (15 U.S.C. §78dd-2(a) (3)): 

$2,000,000 finei 
five years probation; 
restitution; and 
$400 special assessment. 
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3. Sentencjnq Guidelines 

The U.S. Attorneys and Defendants _gree and understand that 
because the crimes charged in the Info~ations occurred after 
November 1, 1991. the United States sentencing Guidelines 
(*u.s.S.c.") relating to the sentencing br organizations (Chapter 
Eight of the united States sentencing Guidelines) shall apply. 
The parties stipulate to the faetual pr.dicates set forth below 
and further agree that the following is! the proper application of 
the sentencing guidelines to each of the Informations: 

a. InformAtion A: Oata FAlsitica~ion (SaybQlt Inc.) 

§8C2.4 Base Fine 
(0)(2) the pecuniary gain to the organizationjrom the offense is '" . . . . . .. $985,000 

§HC2.5 Culpability Score 
(a) starl with 5 points and apply subsections (b) through (g) below ............. 5 

(b) InYQlvement in or Toletq",e QfCrimjnal AfiviCY 
(3)(B) the unil oj the organization within w ich the offense was c(~mmlttcd 
had 200 or more employees and 

(i) an individual within high level personnel oj the 
orKanization participated in, condoned, or was willfully ignorant 
ojthe offense; or 
(ii) tolerance ojthe offense by substantial authority personnel 
was pervasive throughout such unit ............................ 3 

(e) Obslrucliou QfJus[ice 
A district manager willfully obstructed or impeded, attempted to 
ohstruct or impede, or aided, abetted, or e-hcouraged obstruction 
ojjuslIce during the investigation of the inStant offense . .................. 3 

(KJ Self-Re.portia,z. COQpetatjon. and A cceptaIJce afResponsib.ih'O' 
(2) the organization fully cooperated in the investigation and c/(>arly 
demonstrated recognition and affirmative Qcceptance oj responsibility jor 
11.'1 criminal conduct ............................................. -2 

§/'(C2.6 M,nimum and Maxiwum Mullipliers 
Culpability Minimum 
Score Multiplier 
9 1.80 

3 

Maximum 
Multiplier 
3.60 



§8C2,7 Guideline Fine Ranze:- Orzgnizqtlons 
(a) minimum of the guidelihefiae rtmge ($985,OOO:x 1.8) .......... " $1.773.000 
(b) maximum o/the guideltaefine range ($985,:000 x 3.6) .. , ....... ' , $3.546.000 

§8C2.9 DiS¥o'Ument 
The court shall add to the fine determined under §8C:z.8 (Detennining the Fine 
Within the Range) any gain to the organ;zationfroftJ the offense that has not and 
wiJl not he paid as restitution or by way of other ,.,dial measures ...... " $985. nno 

b. 

§2H.f.l Ocher Commercial B.ribel)! 
(,) Special Instruction for Fines-Organi:ati011s 

(1) In lieu of the pecuniary Joss under s.ubsection (a){3) of §HC2 . .f 
(Base Fine). use the grfa1est of" .. . (B) the value of the benefit recelVt!d 
or to be received in return/or the uaJawjuJpayment ....... ,',., ... $700,000 

.\"HC2,5 Culpability Score 
(a) start with 5 poinls and apply subsections (b) through (g) below .. , , ' , ..... , ' 5 

(OJ If/volvement ill or Tolerance a/Criminal Activity 
(3)(8) the unit of the organization within Which the offense was commilled 
had 200 or more employees and 
(I) an individual within high level personnel of the organization 
participated in. condoned. or was willjully ignorant of the offense: or 
(JJ) (o/erance of the offense by substantial authority personnel was 
pervasive throughout such unit . .... , .................. , . , , ..... , ' , , , 3 

(~) .\'elf-Reporting, Cooperation. and Acceplal!ce oj Responsibility 
(3) the organi:ation clearly demonstraied recognition and affirmative 
acceptance of responsibility for its crimindl conduct . ..... , , .. , ..... ' , " -1 

Total 7 

.<,'xel,6 Mmimum (WdMaxirtJum MulJipliers 
Culpability Minimum 
Score Multiplier 
7 1.40 

4 

Maximum 
Multiplier 
2.80 



§8C2. 7 Guideline Fine Banff. - QaanizaliaDS 
(a) minimum of the guidelinefim range ($700~OOO X 1.4) ............. $980,000 
(b) marimumoftheguidelJne/inerange($700,OOOx2.8) ....... ..... $1,960,000 

Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the right of the 
parties to appeal the sentence on qrou~ds consistent with this 
agreement, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 53742. 

4. Corporate Authotization 

Defendants Saybolt Inc. and Saybo~t North America Inc. will 
provide to the U.S. Attorneys and to the Court written evidence, 
in the form of notarized resolutions of their Boards of 
Directors, certifying that Defendants ~re authorized to waive 
their right to indictment, to plead guilty to the Informations in 
this case, and to enter into and comply with all provisions of 
this agreement. The resolutions shall further certify that the 
General Counsel of each corporation and his designee are 
authorized to take these actions and that all corporate 
formalities, including, but not limited to, approval by 
Defendants' directors, required for such authorization have been 
observed. 

Defendants Saybolt Inc. and Saybolt North America Inc. agree 
th~t Thomas E. Dwyer, Jr., as attorney 'for Saybolt Inc. and 
saybolt North America Inc., and pursuarlt to duly authorized 
powers of attorney for both Defendants, will be authorized to 
appear on their behalf, tb enter their guilty pleas and to 
represent them for imposition of their sentences. 

5. Agreed Disposition 

The u.s. Attorneys and Detendantsagree pursuant to Fed. R. 
Crim. P. 11(e) (1) (C) that the following is the appropriate 
disposition of these case~: 

a. Information A: Data FalsificAtion (SaybQlt Inc.) 

i) $3,400,000 fine (compri$ed of $2,415,000 fine 
determined with~n the 9~1deline sentencing range, 
pursuant to S8C2.8, plus $985,000 disgorgement, 
pursuant to S8C2.9) to be paid as specified below; 

ii) a five year term of probation, subject to the 
fOllowing special conditions: 

A. Saybolt shall institute and follow a 
compliance programas~described in paragraph 
8 of this agreemen~; and 
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B. saybolt shall comply with all applicable 
environmental laws and regulations and shall 
cooperate fully with all local, state and 
federal environment. 1 officials, including 
compliance with any and all reasonable and 
lawful requests for inspection, verification 
and ~onitorinq of environmental testing 
practices; 

iii) $800 special a ••• ssment. 

b. Information B: fPreign Corrupt Practices Act 
(Saybolt North America Inc. abd Saybolt Inc.) 

i) $1,500,000 fine, joint and several, (determined 
within the guideline sentencing range, pursuant to 
S8C2.8); 

ii) a five year term of probation, subject to the 
following special condition: 

A. Defendants Saybolt Inc. and Saybolt North 
America Inc. and their successors, or any of 
their affiliated corporate entities operating 
in the United States or managed or 
administered by the Defendants or their 
successors, shall comply with the Foreign 
Corrupt Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. S 78dd 
regarding direct or' indirect payments to 
officials of foreign governments and 
regarding accounting and disclosure of such 
paymentsi 

iii) $800 special assessment for each Defendant. 

Upon imposition of the sentences, the parties agree that all 
fines and special assessments, totaling $4,902,400, 'be payable 
forthwith. Defendants agree to convey the entire amount of the 
fines and special assessments imposed, up to $4,902,400, by wire 
transfer to the Clerk of the United States District Court for the 
District of Massachusetts. Defendants agree to make this payment 
~ithin two business days follow~ng the imposition of the 
$cntences. 

6. ConditiQOs frecaaent 

The participation of the U.S. Attorneys in the joint 
agreemcnt set forth in paragraph 5 of this agreement is 
conditional upon Defendants' performance of the following 
obligations: 
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a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

Defendants shall provide full: and truthful cooperation 
to the united States as set forth in paragraph 9 of 
this agreement; 

No later than two business davs prior to sentencing, as 
scheduled by the Court, Oe!.n~ants shall notify the 
Uni ted States that Defendants,' counsel, Dwyer and 
Collora, LLP, is in possess1oh of $4,902,400 in its 
client funds account with whi~h to pay Defendants' 
fines and mandatory special a.eesements as provided in 
paragraph 5; 

Saybolt shall comply with the remedial measures set 
forth in paragraph 8 of this agreement; and 

Saybolt shall take out a half page display 
advertisement, prior to sentencing, in each of the 
following pUblications: Standardization News; Chemical 
and Engineering News; Oil & Gas Journal; oil Express; 
and Marketer News, which contains the following text 
(to include bold and capitalized caption): 

SA YBOLT AGREES TO PAY $3.4 MiLLION FINE FOR 
FALSIFYING REFORMULATED GASOLINE REPORTS 

AND OTHER LAB RESULT FALSIFICATION 

Saybolt Inc has agreed to plead guilty in Federal Court to criminal charges or 
conspiracy to violate the Clean Air Act by submitting false reports and wire fraud The 
charges arise from Saybolt's falsely cenifying result,s of qualitative tests of reformulated 
gasoline (RFG), as required under the Clean Air Act. as well as instances of falsified lab 
results unrelated to the RFG program. The company has cooperated with federal 
authorities, conducted its own investigation into thci allegations, and hired a nationally 
known environmental consulting firm to develop a Corrective action plan. As a result of 
the internal review, Saybolt has disciplined employ~s involved, appointed a compliance 
officer. amended its testing procedures, drafted an ~thics Policy, and required new 
training and compliance courses for its employees. In addition to these measures, as a 
result of a pattern of dataTalsification, our company has agreed to pay a fine of 
$3,400,000 and to be placed on probation for five years. We also agreed to publish this 
advertisement. We have taken ·extensive steps to ensure that such violations will not occur 
in the future for we recognize that the oil industry relies on accurate reporting by 
independent inspection facilities. The conduct that ied to these criminal convictions was 
not consistent with Saybolt's tradition and it will not be tolerated in the future. We have 
submitted our newly adopted compliance program to the EPA and based on this new 
extemive program, all of our environmental testing :Jicenses will remain in full force and 
effect 

Accurate reporting of lest results to the EPA is essential to the implementation of 
the Clean fur Act, the goa! of which is to improve the quality of the air we all breathe 
Failure to do so will expose you to severe penalties; It is also smart business. 
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If Defendants fail to comply with these conditions prior to 
sentencing, the U.S. Attorneys .hall be: ~ree to recommend any 
sentence, including fine, they deem appropriate. 

7. ManQAtory Special Assessment 

Defendants agree to pay the mandatory special assessments, 
totaling $2,400, to the Clerk of the Co~t of the United States 
District Court for the District of Ma •• achusett. within two 
business days after the date of .entenc~ngt unless affirmatively 
relieved of this obligation by the Dist~ict court. 

8. Remedial M~~ures 

As a condition of Saybolt's probat;ion, Saybolt agrees to 
establish and maintain an effective compliance program regarding 
the operation of its qualitative inspection and testing services. 
Saybolt agrees that the compliance pro~am will be submitted to 
the United States for review, comment ahd approval by the 
Environmental Protection Agency no later than sixty days after 
the date of entering into this plea agr'eement. ' 

Saybolt further understands and a~ees to assume all costs 
associated with the implementation, maintenance and Court 
oversight of this condition of probation. 

As part of establishing and mainta~ning an effective 
compliance program and in order to meet the goal of eradicating 
the practice of falsifying test data, S'aybolt will do the 
following: 

a. appoint a compliance officer ~ith experience in 
environmental regulations and' compliance, who will be 
responsible for all tederal 5nd state environmental 
regUlatory compliance and whO, will submit quarterly 
reports to the Court and the United states regarding 
the status of the implementation of the program and the 
recommendations of the independent consultant discussed 
in the next section; 

b. immediately retain the servioes of Environmental 
Business strategies (¥EBS~) as an independent 
consultant, who will supervi~. the preparation of 
Saybolt's compliance plan and will monitor its 
implementation. EBS shall have full access to 
Saybolt's records bearing on :its compliance with laws 
and regulations administered 'by EPA, as well as full 
access to Saybolt employees. 

c. d~velop and imp+ement a program to ensure compliance 
w~th all federal and state environmental laws 
concerning qualitative inspedtion and testing services, 
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which program shall be subjec~ to the revie~ and 
approval of the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency ("EPA"). The program will adopt and implement 
the recommendations of the outside consultant retained 
as part of this agreement and will incorporate and 
employ procedures deemed necessary to prevent future 
instances of data talsiticat~n and to fully comply 
with all state and federal .~ironmental regulations. 
The program will include the :development and 
maintenance of appropriate r.cord keeping policies in 
connection with Saybolt's qualitative inspection and 
testing services. 

d. commence implementation of the compliance program 
following EPA's review, modification and approval of 
said program. 

Saybolt acknowledges that any material and substantial 
failure to implement and to maintain i~ effect the aforementioned 
compliance program for the full term of the probationary period 
shall constitute a breach'of this agreement. 

9. Cooperation with La~ ,Enforcement 

Defendants agree to cooperate truthfully and completely with 
the United States in its investigation of possible violations of 
federal and state law and in any trial or other proceedings 
nrising out of this investigation of Defendants and any of their 
pre~.ent and former officers and employees. 

a. Defendants understand and agree that their cooperation 
obligations will require them to do the following: 

i) provide full disclosure of a]l instances known to the 
Defendants or their outside oounsel as of the date of 
execution of this agreement tiy the parties of data 
falsification, tampering with samples, tampering with 
analytical equipment or otherwise tampering with any 
qualitative or quantitative test resultsj 

ii) provide full disclosure of all information known to the 
Defendants or their qutside oounsel as of the date of 
execution of this aqraement ~Y the parties concerning 
the payment of money to Panamanian government officials 
in or about December, 1995; 

iii) provide full disclosure of all information known to the 
Defendants or their outside counsel as of the date of 
execution of this agreement by the parties concerning 
any payments by Saybolt Inc. or Saybolt North America 
Inc. or any of their affiliated corporate entities 
operating in the United states or managed or 
administered by the Defendants made directly or 
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indirectly to a~y foreign officials for the purpose of 
influencing such Officials; 

iv) provide full disclosure of all information known to the 
Defendants or tneir outside counsel as of the date of 
execution of this agreement by the parties concerning 
any business activities by Sarbolt Inc. or Saybolt 
North America Inc. or any of their affiliated corporate 
entities operating in the United States or managed or 
administered by the Defendant. involving trade with 
embargoed nations; 

v) provide access to copies of original documents and 
records; 

vi} provide access to Defendants'expert and consultant, 
Environmental Business strategies, as well as to EBS' 
records, reports, and documents excluding any work 
product privileged or attorney client privileged 
information not otherwise covered by this agreement; 

vii) require that, upon request and reasonable notice by the 
U.S. Attorneys, Defendants' directors, officers and 
employees make themselves available for interviews by 
law enforcement agents and for attendance at legal and 
judicial proceedings, including grand jury sessions, 
trials and other court hearings; 

viii) waive any claim of attorney-client privilege or work 
product protection with respect to the information 
disclosed to or obtained by Defendants' General Counsel 
or Assistant General Counsel during the period 1994 
through May II, 1997, relating to the subject matters 
of the two Informations refer~ed to in paragraph 1 of 
this agreement, provided, how~ver, that except as set 
forth in paragraph 9(b) of this agreement, such waiver 
shall not extend to any commuhications or, conversations 
in which any attorney associated with Dwyer & Collora, 
LLP participated; 

ix) waive any claim of attorney-client privilege with 
respect to any and all communications occurring from 
November I, 1995 through October 31, 1996, between and 
among (a) officers and employ,es of Saybolt Inc. and 
Saybolt North America Inc.; and (b)Philippe S.E. 
Schreiber, Esq., and which address the payment of money 
to Panamanian government officials to secure a 
leasehold in Panama; and 

x) take all reasonable measures to ensure that Defendants' 
directors, offiders and employees cooperate fully and 
truthfully with the United States and disclose all 
information with respect to their activities and those 
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ot others relating to violations ot tedera1 or state 
criminal laws, inc1udinq fede~al environmental laws. 

b. Defendants further understand· and agree that their 
cooperation obligations will require tham to do the following 
with respect to work product pr.pared by Saybolt's former in
house counsel and its outside counsel which pertains to 
falsification of testing data, tamperin9 with samples, tampering 
with analytical equipment or otherwise tampering with any 
qualitative or quantitative test results: 

i) provide all notes and memoranda of interviews compiled 
and prepared by their counsel·ot interviews of 
Defendants' directors, office~s and employees; 

ii) provide all notes and memoranda of interviews compiled 
and prepared by their counsQl of interviews with 
individuals who are not directors, officers or 
employees of Defendants; 

iii) except as set forth in paragraph 9(a) (viii) of this 
agreement, Defendants' counsel shall not be required by 
this agreement to give testimony regarding the subject 
matters described in paragraphs 9(b) (i) and (ii) above, 
except pursuant to a trial or grand jury subpoena or 
other court order. 

As limited to such materials, Defendants' and their counsel 
will provide a complete and full waiver of the attorney-client 
privilege and the work-product privilege, except as to those 
portions of materials containin; the mental impressions and 
opinions of their counsel. Defendants ~gree that only portions 
of materials containing the mental impressions and opinions of 
their counsel will be redacted from the materials described in 
this paragraph. The u.s. Attorneys agre~ that production of such 
materia);; will not be cons'trued as a general waiver of the 
attorney-client privilege .and/or work product privilege as to any 
communications or materials beyond thos, referred to in 
paragraphs 9(b) (i) and (ii)above. Defen~ants also agree that 
their outside counsel will provide an i~dex of materials in 
outside counsel1s files and in the file' of Defendants' General 
Counsel during the period 1994 through May 11, 1997. 

c. If Defendants comply with all the terms of this 
agreement, the United States will, upon,request of Defendants, 
advise the Court and any federal, state or local government 
agency, including licensing agencies or·authorities, of the 
nature and extent of any cooperation provided by Defendants. 

d. In return for Defendants' full and truthful 
cooperation, the U.S. Attorneys agree n6t to use any 
information provided by Defendants pursuant to this 
agreement (or any information directly or indirectly derived 
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therefrom) against Defendants in any criminal case except: 
in a prosecution for perjury or obstruction of justice; in a 
pro~ecution for making a false statement after the date of 
this agreement; in a prosecution or other proceeding 
relating to any crime of violenee; in a prosecution or other 
proceeding relating to a violation of apy provision of Title 
26 of United states Code. The United States reserves the 
right to respond fully and complately to all requests for 
information by the Distriot Court and U.S. Department of 
Probation in this matter. All such disclosures, however, 
shall be made subject to the provi.ion.~concerning the use 
of this information by the District Cou~t and u.s. 
Department of Probation contained in U.S.S.G. SlB1.8(a) and 
the commentary thereto. 

e. If the U.S. Attorneys determine that Defendants have 
breached this agreement by knowingly making any false, incomplete 
or misleading statement, or by knowingly providing any false, 
incomplete or misleading information, tb any law enforcement 
personnel, grand jury or court, the U.S. Attorneys may terminate 
~hi~ agreement as set forth below, and may also prosecute 
Defendants for any and all offenses that could be charged against 
them in the Districts of Massachusetts, New Jersey and 
Connecticut, including, b~t not limited to, false statements and 
perjury. 

10. criminal Liability 

Provided that the Defendants comply with the terms of this 
dgreement, the United states Attorneys agree not to seek 
additional criminal prosecution against Defendants for: 

(a) the conduct described in Information A (Data 
Falsification); 

(b) the conduct described in Information B (Foreign Corrupt 
Practices Act); or 

(c) any business activities involving trade with embargoed 
nations which were known to the United states Attorneys 
and that occurred prior to May 11, 1997 . 

• 
This agreement is not intended to, and does not, satisfy or 

aff~ct the criminal liability of any current or former officer, 
director, employee, agent or representative of the Defendants. 

11. Probation Office Not BouDg By Agreement 

. The sent~ncing dispositions agreed,upon by the parties and 
thclr respectlve calculations under the Sentencing Guidelines are 
not binding upon the united States Probation Office. Defendants' 
plea will be tendered pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. ll(e) (1) (C). 
Defendants cannot withdraw their pleas of guilty unless the 

12 



sentencing judge rejects the plea agreement. I~ the sentencing 
judge rejects the plea agreement, this agreement shall be null 
and void at the option of either the United states or the 
Defendants. In this regard the Derendaflts hereby waive any 
defense to any charges which they might otherwise have under any 
statute of limitations or the Speedy Trial Act. 

12. Information For Presentence Report 

Defendants agree to provide all information requested by the 
u.s. Probation Office concerning their assets, income and 
financial condition, as well as the assets, income and financial 
condition of their principals, shareholders and officers. 

13. Civil Liability 

By entering into this agreement, the u.s. Attorneys do not 
compromise any civil liability, including but not limited to any 
tax liability, which Defendants may hav~ incurred or may incur as 
a result of their conduct and their plea of guilty to the charges 
specified in paragraph 1 of this agreement. 

14. Withdrawal of Plea A~reement 

Should Defendants' guilty pleas not be accepted by the Court 
for whatever reason, or later be withdrawn on motion of 
I)cfcndants, this agreement shall be null and void at the option 
of "the U.S. Attorneys. 

1~. Breach of Agreement 

If the U.S. Attorneys determine th~t Defendants have failed 
m~tcrially to comply with any provision: of this agreement, or 
h~\VC' cumm i tted any crime during the pendency of this agreement I 
the U.S. Attorneys may, at their sole option, be released from 
their commitments under this agreement in their entirety by 
notifying Defendants, through counselor otherwise, in writing. 
The U.S. Attorneys may also pursue all remedies available to them 
IltHlc!r t hI' law, irrespective of whether they elect to be released 
from their commitments under this agree~ent. Defendants 
r(~cogni 7.e that no such breach by them of' any obligation under 
this agreement shall give rise ~o groun~s for withdrawal of their 
guilty pleas. Defendants understand that should any such breach 
of this agreement occur, the u.s. Attorneys will have the right 
to usc against Defendants before any grand jury, at any trial, 
hc~ring or for sentencing purpOses, any statements made by their 
employees and agents, and any informati~n, materials, documents 
or objects provided by Defendants to the u.S. Attorneys pursuant 
to this agreement without any limitation. In this regard, 
Ocfcndants hereby waive any defense to any charges which they 
might otherwise have under any statute of limitations or the 
Speedy Trial Act. 
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16. WhQ Is Bound By Agreement 

a. Intorrootion A; Data falsification (saybolt Inc.) 

with respect to Information A, this aqreement is limited to 
the United states Attorney for the District of Massachusetts! the 
United states Attorney for the District of New Jersey and the 
United States Attorney fo~ the District of Connecticut, and 
cannot and does not bind the Attorney General of the United 
states or any other feder.l, state or ioeal prosecutive 
authorities not identified above. 

b. Information SA foreign Corrqgt Practices Act 
lSaybolt North Amerig8 Inc. and saybolt Inc.) 

With respect to Information 5, this agreement is limited to 
the United states Attorney ror the District or Massachusetts! the 
United States Attorney for the District of New Jersey and the 
Fraud Section, Criminal Division, United states Department of 
Justice! and cannot and does not bind any other federal, state or 
local prosecutive authorities not identified ahove. 

17. Complete Agreement 

This agreement is the complete and only agreement between 
the parties. No promises, agreements cir conditions have been 
entered into other than those set forth in this letter. This 
agreement supersedes prior understandi~gs, if any, of the 
parties, whether written or oral. This agreement cannot be 
modified other than in a written memor~ndum signed by the parties 
or on the record in court. 

If this letter accurately reflects the agreement entered 
into between the U.s. Attorneys and Defendants, please sign the 
Acknowledgments of Plea Agreement below, and af~ix Defendants' 
cor.porate seals. Please also have the signatures of the 
corporate signatories notarized. In addition, please provide a 
copy of requisite authorization to enter into this agreement, by 

14 



Defendants' directors (the original to be provided to the court). 
Return the original of this letter to ~siatant United states 
Attorney Paul G. Levenson. / ! (: .--_ 

\ 
\ 

Sincerefy J " -----
DONALDiK./ST 
United:S tee 

W. P EIN 
First Assistant united States 
Attorney 

PAUL G. LEVENSON 
JOSHUA S. LEVY 
Assistant u.s. Attorneys 

FAITH s. HOCHBERG 
United states Attorney 
District of New Jersey 

By: __________________ --____ __ 

GARY CUTLER 
Assistant u.s. Attorney 

STEPHEN C~ ROBINSON 
United states Attorney 
District of Connecticut 

By: , 
JEFFREY A. MEYER 
Assistant U.s. Attorney 

FRAUD SECTION, CRIMINAL DIVISION 
Upited states Department of Justice 

By: 
-P-ET-E-R--B-.~~---------------

Deputy Chief, Fr~ud Section 

PHILIP UROFSKY 
Trial Attorney 
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Oefendants' directors (the origina1 to be provided to the Court). 
Return the original of this letter to As.istant united states 
Attorney Paul G. Levenson. 

By: 

Sinoerely, 

DONALD X.! STERN 
United states Attorney 

MARK W. PEARLSTEIN 
First Assistant United states 
Attorney 

PAUL G. LEVENSON 
JOSHUA S.: LEVY 
Aasiatant' u.S. Attorneys 

STEPHEN C~ ROBINSON 
united states Attorney 
District of connecticut 

By: . 
JEFFREY A: MEYER 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

FRAUD SEctION, CRIMINAL DIVISION 
URi ted states Department of Justice 

By; ____________________________ _ 

PETER B. CLARK 
Deputy Chief, Fraud section 

PHILIP UROF5KY 
Trial Attorney 
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Defendants' directors (the original to be provided to the Court). Return the original of this letter 
to Assistant {lnited States Attorney Paul G. Levenson. 

Attorney 

By: 

Sincerely, 

DONALD K. STERN 
United States Attorney 

MARK W. PEARLSTEIN 
First Assistant United States 

PAUL G. LEVENSON 
JOSHUA S. LEVY 
Assistant U.S. Attorneys 

FAITH S HOCHBERG 
United States Attorney 
District of New Jersey 

By _____ _ 

GARY CUTLER 
Assistant u.s. Attorney 

STEPHEN C. ROBINSON 
United States Attorney 
District of Connecticut 

By: ~. 
JEPFREYA~ 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

FRAUD SECTION, CRIMINAL DIVISION 
United States Department of Justice 

By: _____ _ 

PETER B. CLARK 
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OefendanU' 4irectol:'. J'th. o&"iti.nal to be provided to the Court). 
Iluturn tha or191nal ot Qt. lett.:r t., A •• i.tent United Stat •• 
Attorney Paul G. LeVeft an. : 

.1no.rely, 

DOIIALD' l(.. STaN 
united stat.. Attorney 

tys .... If. ~SlrEIN 
'1r8t ... i.tant Unitod States 
Attorney 

PAUL G. IPENSOft 
JOlMUA: s. LEVY 
a..latent u.s. Attorn.YB 

,AITH •• ,KOCHBnG 
United .~t.. Attorney 
~1atrl~ of New Jer.ey 

.yl ___ --__ ~----------------
GUY CVft!n 
Aaeietant U.S. Attorney 

I'1'IPHQ C. 1tOalNSON 
Vnlt.a,suatea Attorney 
D1.triotot Conneoticut 

Attorney 

faAUO IICTION, CRIMINAL OIVlSION 
UClIi"'~ 8 'at •• Oepart!lent 0 

section 
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ACKNOWldEpGMENT OF fLEA AGREEMENT 

Saybolt Inc. 

I have read this letter ot agreement in its entirety, and 
have discussed it with the directors of Saybolt Inc. and with its 
attorneys. I hereby represent that I am an officer of Defendant 
corporation and that I am duly authorize~ to enter into this 
agreement. 1" hereby acknowledge that this letter of agreement 
fully sets forth the agree~ent of saybolt Inc. with the united 
States Attorneys for the District of Massachusetts, The District 
of New Jersey and the District of Connecticut I and with the Fraud 
Section, Criminal Division, United States Department of Justice. 
I further state that there have been no additional promises or 
representations made to or for the benefit of Saybolt Inc. by any 
officials of the united St es in connection with this matter. 

Corporate Seal: 

Fo 
SA 

Notary Acknowledgment and Seal: 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT Of PLEA AGREEMENT 

Saybolt North America Inc . 
• 

I have read this letter of agreement in its entirety, and 
have discussed it with the directors of Saybolt North America 
Inc. and with its attorneys. I hereby r~present that I am an 
officer of Defendant corporation and that I am duly authorized to 
enter into this agreement. r hereby acknowledge that this letter 
of agreement fully sets forth the agreement of Saybolt North 
America Inc. with the unitee states Attorneys for the District of 
Massachusetts, The District of New Jersey and the District of 
Connecticut, and with the Fraud Section, Criminal Division, 
United States Department of Justice. I further state that there 
have been no additional pro~ises or representations made to or 
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for the benefit of Saybolt North America Inc. by any officials of 
the United States in connecti with this matter. 

AMERIC~ INC. 

Date: J'6 lfuGt.A. 5-; J '71 f 

Corpor.ate Seal: 

Notary Acknowledgment and Seal: 

1 certify that this plea agreement letter has been reviewed 
by duly authorized officials of Saybolt Inc. and saybolt North 
Americar Inc. who understand its terms. 

---rL {- 5J;;~ date: f;i/~/n? 
THOMAS E. DWYER, J~.·ESQ. 
Attorney for Saybolt Inc. and Saybolt North America Inc. 
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